

Glenelg Shire Council
Minutes of the Council Meeting held on
Tuesday 17 December 2024 at 5:30 pm at
Glenelg Shire Offices
71 Cliff Street, Portland

1.	Pres	sent	3	
2.	Gler	nelg Shire Acknowledgement Statement	3	
	2.1.	Acknowledgement of Country	3	
3.	Rec	ording of Meetings	3	
4.	Rec	eipt of Apologies	3	
5.	Previous Meetings		4	
	5.1.	Confirmation of Minutes	4	
	5.2.	Record of Councillor Briefings	5	
6.	Declarations of Conflict of Interest		7	
	6.1.	Declarations of Conflict of Interest	7	
7.	Cou	ncillor Activity Reports	ports	
8.	Notices of Motion		8	
	8.1.	Notice of Motion 2 2024-2025 - Working Group	8	
	8.2.	Notice of Motion 3 2024-2025 - Working Groups	9	
9.	Management Reports1		10	
	9.1.	Councillor and Chief Executive Officer Leave of Absence Register	10	
	9.2.	Councillor and Staff Interaction Policy	12	
	9.3.	Councillor Acceptable Device Use Policy	14	
	9.4.			
Funding Agreement			22	
11				
	11.1.	Questions Taken on Notice at Previous meeting	23	
	11.2.	Questions from Members of the Community	23	
12. Confidential Reports				
12	13. Closure of Council Meeting			

1. PRESENT

Cr Karen Stephens (Mayor), Cr Robyn McDonald (Deputy Mayor), Cr Matt Jowett, Cr Mike Noske, Cr John Pepper, and Cr Michael Carr.

Also in attendance were the Chief Executive Officer (Ms Helen Havercroft), Director Corporate Services (Mr David Hol), Director Community Services (Ms Jayne Miller), Director Infrastructure Services (Mr Aaron Moyne), Executive Manager Governance (Mr Brett Jackson), Chief Finance Officer (Ms Rebecca Campbell) and Business Support Officer - Corporate Services (Ms Louise Haluska).

2. GLENELG SHIRE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT STATEMENT

The Glenelg Shire Council respectfully acknowledges the Gunditjmara, Jardwadjali and Boandik people as the Traditional Owners of the land that the Glenelg Shire encompasses. We pay our respects to their Elders past, present and emerging.

Glenelg Shire Council recognises that Aboriginal people have cared for and protected this land we call home since the dreaming. Their connections to the land, animals, seas and waterways was, and continues to be, a part of their being, and we thank them for their significant contributions to life in Glenelg.

2.1 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COUNTRY

For thousands of years, Aboriginal people have walked this land on their own Country as custodians of Earth Mother. Their unbroken relationship with the land and the sea was, and remains to be, the centre of their lives. We acknowledge the Gunditjmara people of the past, the present, and the future. And with gratitude and respect, we recognise their continued relationship, custodianship, and their bond to this land and sea throughout the ages.

3. RECORDING OF MEETINGS

To those present in the gallery today, by attending a public meeting of the Council you are consenting to your image, voice and comments being recorded and published. Council meetings may be livestreamed and the Chief Executive Officer will enable a copy of the recording to the public.

4. RECEIPT OF APOLOGIES

Cr Duane Angelino

5. PREVIOUS MEETINGS

5.1. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

Recommendation

That the minutes of the Statutory Meeting held on Wednesday, 20 November 2024, as circulated, be confirmed.

That the minutes of the Council Meeting held on Tuesday, 26 November 2024, as circulated, be confirmed.

MOTION

MOVED Cr McDonald

That the minutes of the Statutory Meeting held on Wednesday, 20 November 2024, as circulated, be confirmed.

That the minutes of the Council Meeting held on Tuesday, 26 November 2024, as circulated, be confirmed.

SECONDED Cr Jowett

CARRIED

FOR: Cr Carr, Cr Jowett, Cr McDonald, Cr Noske, Cr Stephens and Cr Pepper

AGAINST: Nil

5.2. RECORD OF COUNCILLOR BRIEFINGS

David Hol, Director Corporate Services

Executive Summary

This report provides for Council to receive a record of any recent Councillor Briefing sessions undertaken from the period commencing the 23 January 2024.

Recommendation

That Council receives the record of the Councillor briefing held on 26 November 2024 and 3 December 2024.

MOTION

MOVED Cr Carr

That Council receives the record of the Councillor briefing held on 26 November 2024 and 3 December 2024.

SECONDED Cr Noske

CARRIED

FOR: Cr Carr, Cr Jowett, Cr McDonald, Cr Noske, Cr Stephens and Cr Pepper

AGAINST: Nil

Background/Key Information:

The Glenelg Shire Council Governance Rules as adopted on the 23 January 2024 require that a record is kept of each Councillor Briefing and that the record is tabled at an open Council meeting (excluding any confidential matters).

The record is to include a list of matters presented and any Conflict-of-Interest declarations together with any actions taken to resolve declared conflicts.

The objective of submitting the record to a Council meeting is to ensure public transparency in Council decision making processes.

a. Council Plan and Policy Linkage

Our Voice and Action - A highly engaged and capable local government, leading Glenelg to ensure the needs and aspirations of our community are realised.

b. Legislative, Legal and Risk Management Considerations

Whilst not a legislative obligation, the records are tabled at a Council meeting in accordance with Governance Rule number 68.

c. Consultation and/or communication processes implemented or proposed

Not applicable

d. Financial Implications and Collaboration

Councillor Briefings and the records keeping obligations are provided for within the adopted operational budgets.

e. Governance Principles

The transparency of Council decisions, actions and information is to be ensured.

Attachment List

- 1. Councillor Briefing Record 26 November 2024 [5.2.1 1 page]
- 2. Councillor Briefing Record 3 December 2024 [5.2.2 1 page]

6. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

6.1. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Nil.

7. COUNCILLOR ACTIVITY REPORTS

Councillor Activity Reports will recommence at the January Council Meeting, covering the period from the Statutory Meeting on 20 November 2024 until 31 December 2024.

8. NOTICES OF MOTION

8.1. NOTICE OF MOTION 2 2024-2025 - WORKING GROUP

CEO: Helen Havercroft, Chief Executive Officer

In accordance with the Council's Governance Rules, I give notice of my intention to move the following motion at the Council Meeting to be held on Tuesday 17 December 2024.

That Council requests a report on the steps required to progress a 'Council and Traditional Owners' working group before 25th February 2025.

Signed: Cr Michael Carr Date: 5 December 2024

Attachments

1. Notice of Motion Traditional Owners [8.1.1 - 1 page]

MOTION

MOVED Cr Carr

That Council requests a report on the steps required to progress a 'Council and Traditional Owners' working group before 25th February 2025.

SECONDED Cr Noske

CARRIED

FOR: Cr Carr, Cr Jowett, Cr McDonald, Cr Noske, Cr Stephens and Cr Pepper

AGAINST: Nil

8.2. NOTICE OF MOTION 3 2024-2025 - WORKING GROUPS

CEO: Helen Havercroft, Chief Executive Officer

In accordance with the Council's Governance Rules, I give notice of my intention to move the following motion at the Council Meeting to be held on Tuesday 17 December 2024.

That Council requests reports on establishing the following working groups on or before 25 March 2025.

- a) Casterton Saleyards
- b) Arts & Culture
- c) Tourism & Economic Development
- d) Buildings

Signed: Cr Michael Carr Date: 5 December 2024

Attachments

1. Notice of motion Working Groups [8.2.1 - 1 page]

MOTION

MOVED Cr Carr

That Council requests reports on establishing the following working groups on or before 25th March 2025.

- a) Casterton Saleyards
- b) Arts & Culture
- c) Tourism & Economic Development
- d) Buildings

SECONDED Cr Noske

CARRIED

FOR: Cr Carr, Cr Jowett, Cr McDonald, Cr Noske, Cr Stephens and Cr Pepper

AGAINST: Nil

9. MANAGEMENT REPORTS

9.1. COUNCILLOR AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER LEAVE OF ABSENCE REGISTER

Director: Helen Havercroft, Chief Executive Officer

Executive Summary

The purpose of this report is to enable Council to consider a request for leave from Cr Angelino.

Recommendation

That Council approve the Leave of Absence request from Cr Angelino for the 17 December Council Meeting.

MOTION

MOVED Cr McDonald

That Council approve the Leave of Absence request from Cr Angelino for the 17 December Council Meeting.

SECONDED Cr Noske

CARRIED

FOR: Cr Carr, Cr Jowett, Cr McDonald, Cr Noske, Cr Stephens and Cr Pepper **AGAINST:** Nil

Background/Key Information:

In accordance with Section 35 (1) (e), (4), and (6) of the *Local Government Act 2020* Councillors are entitled to take Leave of Absence.

Council Governance Rules adopted on 23 January 2024 set out in Section 19 Apologies and 19 (6) sets out that Council will not unreasonably withhold its approval of a leave of absence request.

A leave of absence has been received from Cr Angelino.

a. Council Plan and Policy Linkage

Our Voice and Action - A highly engaged and capable local government, leading Glenelg to ensure the needs and aspirations of our community are realised.

b. <u>Legislative</u>, <u>Legal and Risk Management Considerations</u>

Section 35 of the Local Government Act 2020.

c. Consultation and/or communication processes implemented or proposed

Councillors are required to submit Leave of Absence requests in writing to the Chief Executive Officer.

The Chief Executive Officer is required to submit their Leave of Absence requests in writing to Council through the Councillor and Chief Executive Officer Leave of Absence Register.

A register will be held by the Chief Executive Officer and reported periodically to Council.

d. Financial Implications and Collaboration

Nil.

e. <u>Governance Principles</u>

The transparency of Council decisions, actions and information is to be ensured.

Attachment List

1. Councillor and Chief Executive Officer Leave of Absence Register (1) [9.1.1 - 1 page]

9.2. COUNCILLOR AND STAFF INTERACTION POLICY

Director: David Hol, Director Corporate Services

Executive Summary

This report seeks Council adoption of the updated Councillor and Staff Interaction Policy.

Recommendation

That Council adopts the revised Councillor and Staff Interaction Policy.

MOTION

MOVED Cr McDonald

That Council adopts the revised Councillor and Staff Interaction Policy.

SECONDED Cr Jowett

CARRIED

FOR: Cr Carr, Cr Jowett, Cr McDonald, Cr Noske, Cr Stephens and Cr Pepper

AGAINST: Nil

Background/Key Information:

In January 2023, the Local Government Inspectorate report undertaken on compliance with the implementation of the *Local Government Act 2020* resulted in 9 recommendations across Victorian Local Authorities.

One of these recommendations was for all Councils to develop policies covering Councillors and staff interactions. This was a recommendation that is over and above the specific policy obligations under the *Local Government Act 2020*.

Subsequently a draft was developed by Council staff and adopted by Council in July 2023.

Whilst the policy was not due for review until 2027, the recent Interim Municipal Monitor report highlighted that the policy now did not reflect some of the changes that were implemented as part of the Council action plan to the Municipal Monitor report, most notably, the cessation of the Councillor request process.

The policy has now been reviewed with the above changes included and further refined the reporting mechanisms to reflect Council staff current roles when supporting Councillors.

The revised policy for Councillor and staff interaction is now provided for Council consideration and adoption.

a. Council Plan and Policy Linkage

Our Voice and Action - A highly engaged and capable local government, leading Glenelg to ensure the needs and aspirations of our community are realised.

b. <u>Legislative</u>, <u>Legal and Risk Management Considerations</u>

Whilst the policy is not specifically mandated under the Act, the CEO is responsible under S46(3c) of the *Local Government Act 2020* for managing interactions between members of Council staff and Councillors ensuring that policies, practices and protocols that support arrangements for interaction are developed and implemented.

c. Consultation and/or communication processes implemented or proposed

The revised policy has been considered by Councils Governance Unit and the Executive Team.

d. Financial Implications and Collaboration

The policy does not commit to any additional expenditure.

e. <u>Governance Principles</u>

Council decisions are to be made and actions taken in accordance with the relevant law.

The transparency of Council decisions, actions and information is to be ensured.

Attachment List

1. DRAFT COUNCIL POLICY Councillor and Staff Interaction Policy December 2024 [9.2.1 - 10 pages]

9.3. COUNCILLOR ACCEPTABLE DEVICE USE POLICY

Director: Ann Kirkham, Chief Information Officer - Glenelg Futures

Executive Summary

Councillors are provided information technology devices to ensure they have the tools to undertake their role. The Councillor Acceptable Device Use Policy provides guidance on the appropriate usage to ensure security is maintained.

Recommendation

That Council adopts the Councillor Acceptable Device Use Policy.

MOTION

MOVED Cr Carr

That Council adopts the Councillor Acceptable Device Use Policy.

SECONDED Cr McDonald

CARRIED

FOR: Cr Carr, Cr Jowett, Cr McDonald, Cr Noske, Cr Stephens and Cr Pepper

AGAINST: Nil

Background/Key Information:

Council supplies a laptop and mobile phone to all Councillors. Access to these information technology (IT) devices impose certain obligations and responsibilities to ensure Council security is maintained.

Acceptable use of the Council's IT devices should always be legal, ethical, reflect honesty, and demonstrate respect for intellectual property, commercial confidentiality, ownership of information and system security.

Limitations are required regarding the use of the Council's IT devices to protect and maintain network security. All IT devices may be monitored for security and network management reasons and acceptance of this practice is a condition of use.

a. Council Plan and Policy Linkage

Our Access, Transport and Technology - Making it easier for people to connect in and around the Glenelg Shire.

b. Legislative, Legal and Risk Management Considerations

Local Government Act 2020; Section 40 - Reimbursement of expenses of Councillors and members of a delegated committee; Section 41 - Council Expenses Policy and Section 42 - Resources and facilities for the Mayor and Councillors.

Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014

Public Records Act 1973

Freedom of Information Act (Vic) 1982

Model Councillor Code of Conduct

Fraud and Corruption Control Policy

Privacy Policy

c. Consultation and/or communication processes implemented or proposed

The policy has been reviewed by the Director Corporate Services, Executive Manager Governance and the Executive Team.

d. Financial Implications and Collaboration

The costs associated are within the annual operating budget.

e. Governance Principles

Council decisions are to be made and actions taken in accordance with the relevant law.

Innovation and continuous improvement is to be pursued.

Attachment List

1. Councillor Acceptable Device Use Policy [9.3.1 - 4 pages]

9.4. PORTLAND FORESHORE MULTI-PURPOSE PROJECT - PROJECT DELIVERY OPTIONS AND FUNDING AGREEMENT

Director: Aaron Moyne, Director Infrastructure Services

Executive Summary

This report presents Council with two (2) options for consideration associated with the Portland Foreshore Multipurpose Facility Project (the project). These options are the refurbishment of the existing Portland Yacht Club and Angling Club buildings, or the termination of the project, which involves the return of remaining project funding to the Victorian Government.

An options analysis has been undertaken, along with ongoing engagement with representatives from Regional Development Victoria (RDV), with it recommended that Council proceed with the refurbishment option and authorise the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to negotiate a funding agreement variation and extension.

Recommendation

That Council:

- Resolves to proceed with building refurbishment of the buildings currently in use by the Portland Yacht Club and Angling Club as part of the Portland Foreshore Multi-Purpose Facility.
- 2. Authorises the Chief Executive Officer to negotiate a funding agreement variation and extension with Regional Development Victoria.
- 3. Revokes recommendation 2-5 from the July 2024 Council meeting seeking alternate designs and further funding.

MOTION

MOVED Cr Noske

That Council:

- Resolves to proceed with building refurbishment of the buildings currently in use by the Portland Yacht Club and Portland Sports & Game Fishing Club as part of the Portland Foreshore Multi-Purpose Facility project.
- 2. Authorises the Chief Executive Officer to negotiate a funding agreement variation and extension with Regional Development Victoria.
- 3. Revokes recommendation 2-5 from the July 2024 Council Meeting seeking alternate designs and further funding.

SECONDED Cr Carr

CARRIED

FOR: Cr Carr, Cr Jowett, Cr McDonald, Cr Noske, Cr Stephens and Cr Pepper

AGAINST: Nil

Background/Key Information:

The Foreshore Project is a longstanding priority for Council with \$5 million of funding provided by the Victorian Government in 2021 through the *Regional Infrastructure Fund*, of which \$4 million has already been received by Council. The funding agreement for the Project establishes a Council requirement to provide matched funding to the value of \$1.2 million (on a 4:1 ratio).

Following the Council resolution of July 2024, and a subsequent Council briefing on 10 September 2024, officers have continued to work through options analysis and liaised with both RDV (grant manager) and the Department of Energy, Environment and Climate Action (DEECA), around available delivery solutions.

A single delivery option has emerged, being the refurbishment of the two existing foreshore buildings known locally as the Yacht Club and the Angling Club. This option has been reinforced through correspondence provided to Council by the Victorian Government in both July and October 2024, along with ongoing officer discussions with senior RDV representatives.

The Project, which obtained funding in 2021, was originally identified to replace two end-of-life assets on the foreshore with one new multi-purpose facility. This facility was for the use of both clubs, currently occupying the respective buildings, and to provide benefit to the wider community as a multi-purpose building.

Through issues identified and experience with gaining landowner (public land manager) consent under the *Marine and Coastal Act 2018* for the original project location (south of the existing Yacht Club), DEECA identified the existing Yacht Club site as more likely to achieve consent. Based on this information, Council approved the change of location for the facility in October 2023 and the design was updated to reflect the change.

Following stakeholder engagement on the amended design in September/October 2023, involving strong public interest and feedback, RDV undertook further stakeholder engagement and requested DEECA complete a high-level analysis of several locations on the foreshore based on the consent requirements.

During this time, in accordance with the earlier Council resolution of 26 September 2023, a tender process was initiated for the construction of a two (2) storey multipurpose facility at the Yacht Club site, which identified a deficit in the available budget to deliver the project.

A series of Council briefings were held to update Councillors on the potential budget issue and DEECA's assessment of possible locations. Following these briefings, a report was presented to the July 2024 Council Meeting, whereby Council resolved to halt the existing works, secure the existing funding and assess options for 3 possible locations for the facility (the Yacht Club site, a new location south of the Maritime Discovery Centre and a new location adjacent to the TS Henty). These locations have been considered by both DEECA and RDV and by Council officers through an options analysis.

Following an initial assessment of five (5) options across three (3) locations, in consultation with RDV and DEECA, a briefing was provided to Councillors on 10 September 2024 to discuss the project and options matrix. This matrix identified that the only viable option to meet both the landowner and funding agreement requirements is the refurbishment of the existing buildings. This has been further directed in correspondence received from RDV in July and October 2024.

As it stands, the only option for Council to retain project funding and deliver a community multipurpose outcome, is through the refurbishment of the existing buildings. Discussions between officers and RDV have clearly indicated that if Council cannot deliver upon this outcome, the remaining project funding will need to be returned to the Victorian Government, with no guarantee it will be provided for any future project.

RDV have also expressed an expectation that the balance \$1m of the \$5m funding is unlikely to be provided to Council, whilst the project needs to be delivered in accordance with the current funding ratio of \$4:1, with a Council contribution provided. Any remaining funding at project end will need to be returned by Council.

Whilst the options are limited based on the options analysis, MACA constraints and RDV position, officers' view is that the refurbishment outcome still presents benefit to Council, stakeholders, and the community, through the upgrade of two existing buildings, which will extend their useful life, improve their condition and amenity as part of the Portland Foreshore Precinct, and achieve a multipurpose outcome.

OPTION 1: Refurbishment Option

Refurbishment works to both buildings will not only provide a deliverable to satisfy the Funding Agreement and RDV, but will also provide renewed facilities for use by the community and clubs. Refurbishment will extend the life of the buildings and reduce escalating maintenance costs, with a focus on ensuring the buildings meet the building code, all-abilities access and necessary regulatory requirements.

With the age of the buildings, these works are expected to be sizeable. Indicatively, it is anticipated that proposed refurbishments will include roof replacement, new windows, doors, floor coverings, service upgrades, heating/cooling, toilet and kitchen upgrades, and other works to bring the building up to National Construction Code standards. Additional works may be included, including potential external design changes and treatment, subject to both budget and any MACA limitations.

Initial engagement undertaken by RDV with the two clubs (the Yacht Club and Sports Fishing Club) has indicated they support this outcome. Council officers have engaged further with both Clubs in December 2024, who maintain their support for a refurbishment outcome which maintains existing building footprint.

In accordance with consultation and information from DEECA, to avoid the requirement for MACA Consent, works will be limited to the buildings only, with no change to footprint.

To complete the refurbishment works the following will be completed:

1. Engagement and Consultation

Engagement will re-commence, and the Communications and Engagement Plan will be updated to ensure that users, key stakeholders and the community are updated with the progress and works to be completed including the benefits of the work to be done.

This process will commence in January 2025 and build upon ongoing discussions held with both the Yacht Club and Sports Fishing Club.

2. Refurbishment Assessment

Council officers have commenced initial building assessments, using existing building condition information and through inspection. A suitably qualified professional will be engaged to complete a Refurbishment Assessment, to understand the scope, feasibility and estimated cost of the refurbishment of both buildings.

A procurement process is being undertaken and a Refurbishment Assessment is expected to be delivered in January/February 2025, which will be utilised to confirm project scope, planning, design and subsequent funding agreement variation and extension.

OPTION 2: Project Termination

If Council determines not to proceed with the refurbishment proposed in Option 1, a project termination process will be initiated requiring funding to be returned back to the Victorian Government (approximately \$3.6m). This expectation has been made clear to Council via correspondence and information received from RDV.

Termination of the project and a return of funding is likely to lead to negative Council, stakeholder and community impacts, through the retention of end-of-life assets requiring alternate funding for maintenance and renewal, increased building condition deterioration and financial pressure on Council, future funding risks and wider reputational risks with both community and Government.

Based on the full project evolution, community feedback, government liaison and current project options, termination of the project will have an adverse economic and community impact, which does not utilise the available funding for existing asset refurbishment and utilisation.

Summary

The refurbishment option presented in Option 1 presents the highest and best use outcome of the two (2) available options provided to Council, which will deliver two refurbished foreshore buildings for enhanced condition, presentation, stakeholder and community use.

To formally proceed with the refurbishment option, the following high-level steps (with indicative timeframes) need to be undertaken:

- 1. Council resolution to proceed with the refurbishment option, or alternatively terminate the project (December 2024)
- 2. Building Refurbishment Assessment undertaken (January/February 2025)
- 3. CEO and officers negotiate and proceed with funding agreement variation and extension with RDV to enable the refurbishment option to be delivered (January-March 2025)
- 4. Further public consultation and engagement with community (early-mid 2025)
- 5. Final detailed design, tender process (including any further Council contract decision) and project delivery (mid-late 2025/early-2026).

A detailed work program and schedule will be developed following any Council decision and in working with RDV.

Should Council choose not to proceed with the refurbishment option, RDV have made clear their position that the funding agreement will be terminated, and the remaining funding will be required to be returned. This would be an undesirable outcome with risks and impacts as outlined.

a. Council Plan and Policy Linkage

Our Lifestyle, Neighbourhood and Culture - Creating enriched and vibrant lives through experiences, safe and well planned neighbourhoods.

b. Legislative, Legal and Risk Management Considerations

Meeting all relevant codes, legal, statutory, and regulatory requirements has been included in the scope of work for the provision of the Refurbishment Assessment and in ongoing project delivery.

An updated risks assessment will be undertaken as part of project planning if Council resolves to proceed with the refurbishment option. Existing identified risks include:

- A return of or claw-back of existing funding provided to Council by the Victorian Government.
- Project delivery risks through planning, design, approval and delivery.
- Financial risk in managing project delivery within budget based on refurbishment scope and extent.
- Reputational risk with both community and Government if appropriate engagement and communications are not maintained.

c. Consultation and/or communication processes implemented or proposed

Consultation and engagement will continue to be undertaken in line with the Council's Community Engagement Policy. The project has been identified as a high-risk project which requires a carefully tailored approach.

Two (2) community consultation phases have been completed for the project, one as part of the Portland Foreshore Masterplan and the other with the initial concept design options for the facility in October 2022.

An updated Consultation and Engagement plan will be completed to note the changes to the project scope and in preparing for any funding agreement variation and extension.

d. Financial Implications and Collaboration

RDV have confirmed that payment of the remaining \$1m is unlikely to be forthcoming even with the refurbishment of the existing facilities.

Council will still be required to provide the same ratio of matched funding (\$4:1) for the refurbishment works, as committed within the original funding agreement.

\$1.2m is currently allocated within Council's 2024-2025 Budget which, based on potential refurbishment delivery, will need to be utilised either in-part or full. This will become clearer as the Refurbishment Assessment is completed to confirm the project scope, including detailed design, project tender and delivery.

e. Governance Principles

The transparency of Council decisions, actions and information is to be ensured.

A governance framework will form a key component of the updated Project Management Plan, if the refurbishment option is supported.

Attachment List

- 1. SIGNED Letter Glenelg Shire Council CEO [9.4.1 2 pages]
- 2. Reply letter Glenelg Shire Council letter from Minister 1 October 2024 [9.4.2 2 pages]

10. URGENT BUSINESS

Nil

11. QUESTION TIME

11.1. QUESTIONS TAKEN ON NOTICE AT PREVIOUS MEETING

- 1. Hooked on Portland 2025 Change of Date Consultation
- a. Are you able to update Council on what consultation did take place [with community groups]?

Although no formal community consultation was conducted, community groups have provided substantial feedback to support the date change for 2025, and these anecdotes were integral to the rationale behind this operational decision. While accommodation providers were not specifically consulted, it is understood by the tourism and events team that most festival attendees are residents. Consultation with Fruitbowl Productions, the Victorian Fisheries Authority, and First Nations groups expressed support for a change in date for 2025.

11.2. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COMMUNITY

1. Breastfeeding facility in Portland CBD

Leah Hilton of Portland asked the following questions:

a. We do not contain a safe and comfortable space within the CBD of Portland for breastfeeding parents. The town of Warrnambool has a wonderful facility that Portland could have in the near future. When do you think something as wonderful could be in place in our town of Portland?

Mayor Cr Stephens advised there is a list of the 'breastfeeding welcome' locations across the Shire on our website. Many of these are located within the Portland CBD. The list includes; All Saints Catholic Church, Funky Hearts Play Centre, Macs Hotel, Intimate Apparel, 12Fold Café, Portland District Health, the Portland Library, Portland Leisure and Aquatics Centre, Port of Call, Bahloo and Active Health.

b. Will this council be providing a comfortable area for not just breastfeeding but for parents to change the young children within the CBD. Currently, the one that is provided at the amenities block in Henty St is NOT a suitable private or comfortable space for any of the parents and their children. Plans to upgrade the facility are in the future. My question is, when will this begin? And what will be provided?

Mayor Cr Stephens advised that at present there is an open and ongoing public consultation with regards to the city centre amenity block in Henty Street and I would encourage you, and anybody else who has an interest in how this amenity building can be used by the community to have their say. But informal assessments into the provision of breastfeeding specific design at this location show that there are considerable health and safety matters that we would need to overcome before inclusion was considered. However, the current plans do include a proposed changing places facility for accessible use together with baby changing facilities.

Page 23 of 27

But as my previous response suggested, Council already provide clean and safe spaces for mothers and babies including at the Portland Library and the Portland Leisure and Aquatics Centre.

c. If we can have something like the facility that Warrnambool has, which is a safe and comfortable space for all parents, what can the council, in the short term, do to help in order to have something like this in a town that is aimed for families to visit, Live and grow?

Mayor Cr Stephens advised that for the purposes of this response she assumes that the reference to Warrnambool is referring to the Warrnambool Breastfeeding Centre. This is a not-for-profit community organisation and Registered Health Promotion Charity. It is not a Council service. The opening and operating of a similar service such as this would be led by our community, and we would welcome such an initiative.

But as my previous response suggested Council already provide clean and safe spaces for mothers and babies including at the Portland Library and the Portland Leisure and Aquatics Centre.

2. Rate Increases and Name Changes

David Headlam of Lake Mundi asked the following questions:

a. Given that it is forecast that 5% of small businesses are likely to hit the wall in Victoria due to the economic environment and increased taxes created by the State Government – will this Council give an undertaking to its ratepayers to manage the annual budget in a responsible manner and keep rate increases at an absolute minimum?

Mayor Cr Stephens advised that Council knows that people across the Shire are struggling with the cost of living pressures. Unfortunately, Council itself is not immune to those pressures either and has seen significant rises in costs across the last few years.

Council is very cognisant of the balance that must be struck between ongoing provision of Council service and continuing to operate within a rate capped environment.

Council has commenced its budget preparations for the next budget in 2025-2026 and consideration of the level of rates levied is a key component of any budget together with the level of fees and charges.

Council will again be seeking community feedback on where to allocate expenditure for services and projects. This feedback will assist in Council's preparation of the annual budget, reflective of community's expectation.

Importantly, for the community more generally if you are struggling to pay your rates please reach out to Council to discuss the payment options that are available as part of Council's Financial Hardship Policy.

b. In the State of Victoria, it has been stated that up to 6,000 place, street and other names will be changed. What part and say does this Council have in this

proposal? What opportunity do ratepayers have to have their input into this proposal?

Mayor Cr Stephens advised that Council is a Naming Authority and as such can name, rename and dual name locations, however the process is guided by the State Naming Rules and other Statutory Requirements around naming.

Council has not been approached by the State of Victoria to rename any place or street.

Council will consider such a request should it arise and in the interim, will continue to operate in accordance with the requirements of the Geographic Place Names guidelines.

c. Are these proposed name changes a wise choice in this economic climate, the cost to the shire and the State must be enormous, does council have a budgeted figure for this?

Mayor Cr Stephens advised that as no request to change names has been received from the State of Victoria at the time of this response, no budget allocation for any future works has been allocated as it's not required.

12. CONFIDENTIAL REPORTS

Recommendation

That the Council Meeting be closed to members of the public pursuant to Section 66 of the *Local Government Act 2020*, to consider the following reports:

- 12.1 Contract 2024-25-03 Bentinck Street Rehabilitation & Asphalt Works
- 12.2 Contract 2024-25-01 Glenelg Shire Council Road Resealing Program 2024-2025
- 12.3 Contract 2024-25-24 Glenelg Shire Road Rehabilitation Program West Strathdownie Road 2024/2025

MOTION

MOVED Cr Carr

That the Council Meeting be closed to members of the public pursuant to Section 66 of the *Local Government Act 2020*, to consider the following reports:

- 12.1 Contract 2024-25-03 Bentinck Street Rehabilitation & Asphalt Works
- 12.2 Contract 2024-25-01 Glenelg Shire Council Road Resealing Program 2024-2025
- 12.3 Contract 2024-25-24 Glenelg Shire Road Rehabilitation Program West Strathdownie Road 2024/2025

SECONDED Cr Noske

CARRIED

FOR: Cr Carr, Cr Jowett, Cr McDonald, Cr Noske, Cr Stephens and Cr Pepper **AGAINST:** Nil

13. CLOSURE OF COUNCIL MEETING

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS, THE MAYOR DECLARED THE MEETING CLOSED AT 6:12 pm.

Victorian State Legislation Copyright Acknowledgement

Extracts from legislation of the Parliament of the State of Victoria, Australia, are reproduced with the permission of the Crown in right of the State of Victoria, Australia. The State of Victoria accepts no responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of any legislation contained in this publication.

© State of Victoria, Australia. Copyright of legislation referenced in this publication is owned by the Crown in right of the State of Victoria, Australia.